G. D. Apte & Co.

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Members of
IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of IndoStar Home Finance Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement
of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as “Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the yearended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on standalone financial statements.

information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the -
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
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with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, (changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate of accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to thepreparation and presentation of the financial statement that
give a true and fair view and are freefrom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or th
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relev
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procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Iif
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern. ‘

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating theresults of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure-
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.
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¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive income, the
Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure-B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of
Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down
under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details
under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements — Refer note no. 32 to the standalone financial statements;

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note no. 5(iii) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the note no. 5(iii) to the standalone financial statements, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or.-
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in othe
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persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate inthe
circumstances by us, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company;

vi) No comments have been offered as regards the maintenance of books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility under Rule
11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 since the said requirements under
proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the
company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023.

For G. D. Apte & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registratjon
7

Mayuresh V. Zele:
Partner =
Membership No.: 150027
UDIN :23150027BGYKFV5448
Place :Mumbai

Date :April 27,2023
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“ANNEXURE-A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF INDOSTAR HOME FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
accounts and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:
(i)

a) A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of intangible assets.

b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management in the year
in accordance with a planned phased programme of verifying them over a period of three years
and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢) The Company does not have any immovable properties and hence, reporting requirement under
clause 3(i){c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) The Company has neither revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) nor intangible assets during the year.

e) As per the information and explanation provided to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the Rules made thereunder.

(ii)
a) The Company’s business does not involve maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five crores rupees, in aggregate, from banks by way of lien over
book debts and receivables of the Company. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of
the Company.

(iii)
a) Since the principal business of the Company is to give loans, reporting requirement under clause
3(iii){a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) As per the information and explanations given to us, terms and conditions of the grant of all loans
and advances provided by the Company, are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. The
Company has not made investments or given any guarantees, security, and advances in the nature
of loans during the year.

¢) In respect of the loans / advances in the nature of loan granted by the Company as part of its
business, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated t;y,f
the Company. Further, except for loans where there are delays of defaults in repayment 'bfW% ey
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Company has disclosed asset classification / staging in note no. 29 (F) to the standalone financial
statements in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) and the guidelines issued by
the Reserve Bank of India, the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and are
also regular in payment of interest, as applicable. Having regard to the voluminous nature of loan
transactions, it is not practicable to furnish party-wise details of amount, due date of repayment
or receipt and the extent of delay in this report, in respect of loans and advances which were not
repaid / paid when they were due or were repaid / paid with a delay, in the normal course of
lending business.

In respect of the loans / advances in nature of loans, the total amount overdue for more than
ninety days (including cases classified as non-performing asset (NPA) as per ‘Non — Banking
Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021’ (“NHB Master
Directions”) as at March 31, 2023 is Rs. 1667.61 Lakhs, the details of the same are disclosed in
note no. 29 (F) to the standalone financial statements. In such instances, in our opinion,
reasonable steps have been by the Company for recovery of the overdue amount of principal and
interest.

Since the principal business of the Company is to give loans, reporting requirement under clause
3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms
or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments,
guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act

are applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or the amounts deemed to be deposit as per the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Rules framed.
Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost record has not been specified for business activities carried out by the
Company. Thus, reporting under Clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

a)
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According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the records of the
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing with the
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including goods and service tax, provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess and any other statutory dues, wherever
applicable. The provisions relating to duty of excise, duty of customs, sales tax, value added tax,
and service tax are not applicable to the Company. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of aforesaid dues were outstanding as at
March 31, 2023 for a period of more than 6 months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no dues in respect of
statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute.
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(vii

(ix)

(x)

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi company as per provisions of the Act. Therefore, the reporting:
requirement on clause 3(xii)(a) to 3(xii)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. ?;?f"””ﬂ

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions or income, not recorded
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in the books of account, have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Mumbai Office: D-509, Neelkanth Business Park, Nathani Road, Vidyavihar West, Mumbai

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayments of dues from any lender during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during
the year for the purposes for which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence clause
3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence clause 3(ix}f)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of
records of the Company, the company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or
further publit offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence the reporting
requirement under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during
the year. Hence the reporting requirement under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud on or by the Company, by its
officers and employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, no report under sub-
section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the secretarial auditor, predecessor auditor
or by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no whistle-blower complaints have
been received during the year by the Company.
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ccording to the information and xplanations gien to us and based ur exaiin
of the Company, the transactions entered with related parties are in compliance with provisions of
section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details of such transactions are disclosed in
the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)
(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has an internal audit
system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditors of the company issued till date for the period under audit
were considered by us.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of records of the Company, the Company during the year has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with the directors covered under the provisions
of section 192 of the Act and accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(xvi)
(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

(b) The Company is a Housing Finance Company registered with the National Housing Bank and is not
required to obtain Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Core Investment
Company (CIC) as defined in the Regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the
reporting requirement under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, the group has no Core Investment
Company (CIC). Hence, the reporting requirement under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xvii) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not incurred cash losses
in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year and accordingly, the reporting
requirement under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report and that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing as at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

Mumbai Office: D-509, Neelkanth Business Park, Nathani Road, Vidyavihar West, Mumbai — 400 086. o
Phone: +91 22 3512 3184; Email: chetan.sapre@gdaca.com.

Pune Office: GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud Road, Pune —411 038.

Phone: +91 20 6680 7200; Email: audit@gdaca.com. 9




G. D. Apte & Co.

Chartered Accountants

(xx)
(a) According to the information and explanation givento us, the company does not have any amount
remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act in respect to other than
ongoing projects pertaining to current financial year and immediately preceding financial year.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of ongoing project, the
Company has transferred unspent amount to a special account, within a period of thirty days from
the end of the financial year in compliance with the provision under sub-section (6) of section 135
of the said Act.

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAIl Firm Registrati : 100515W
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF INDOSTAR HOME FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IndoStar Home Finance Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance th?ﬁi
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements gm
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G. D. Apte & Co.

Chartered Accountants

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone
Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2023,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration-No.: 100515W

Mayuresh V. Zels
Partner
Membership No.: 150027

UDIN :23150027BGYKFV5448
Place : Mumbai

Date :April 27, 2023

Mumbai Office: D-509, Neelkanth Business Park, Nathani Road, Vidyavihar West, Mumbai — 400 086.
Phone: +91 22 3512 3184; Email: chetan.sapre@gdaca.com.
Pune Office: GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud Road, Pune — 411 038.

Phone: +91 20 6680 7200; Email: audit@gdaca.com. 12




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Particulars Note As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1. ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,010.38 391.87
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4 3,260.09 2,070.48
Loans 5 1,32,005.47 1,21,597.18
Investments 6 3,500.54 2,300.12
Other financial assets 7 4,065.23 2,338.36
1,43,841.71 1,28,698.01
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 8 230.53 258.96
Property, plant and equipment 10 564.73 333.48
Intangible assets 11 316.79 207.95
Other non-financial assets 12 473.48 209.80
1,585.53 1,010.19
TOTAL ASSETS 1,45,427.24 1,29,708.20
Il, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 13
. ' ’ . . 3.27 0.05
(i) total outstanding to micro enterprises and small enterprises
{ii) totall outstanding dues of.credltors other than micro 2,384.62 1,199.65
enterprises and small enterprises
Borrowings 14 83,496.56 74,045.20
Other financial liabilities 15 5,000.94 4,257.00
90,885.39 79,501.90
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 16 90.27 89.86
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 9 579.54 80.75
Other non-financial liabilities 17 158.54 134,22
828.35 304.83
TOTAL LIABILITIES 91,713.74 79,806.73
Equity
Equity share capital 18 45,000.00 45,000.00
Other equity 19 8,713.50 4,901.47
TOTAL EQUITY 53,713.50 49,901.47
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1,45,427.24 1,29,708.20

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1 to 57

In terms of our report attached
For G. D. Apte & Co

Chartered Accountants
FRN-100515 /

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Vibhor Kumar Talreja
Non-Executive Director
DIN: 08768297

.

o

Nidhi Sadani
Company Secretary

CA Mayuresh V. Zele
Partner
M. No. 150027

Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 08089220

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 April 2023

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 April 2023



IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue from operations 20
Interest income 17,177.66 13,551.74
Fees and commission income 709.88 592.41
Net gain on fair value changes 283.12 92.89
Gai d iti f fi ial inst d
ain c?n erecognition of financial instruments measured at 2,659.01 223.96
amortised cost category
Total revenue from operations 20,829.67 14,461.00
Other income 2 94.50 21.30
Total income 20,924.17 14,482.30
Expenses
Finance costs 22 6,523.33 4,933.35
Impairment on financial instruments 23 (22.62) 612.11
Employee benefit expenses 24 4,525.83 2,876.59
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 25 321.59 156.55
Other expenses 26 4,452.87 1,295.01
Total expenses 15,801.00 9,873.61
Profit before tax 5,123.17 4,608.69
Tax expense:
1. Current tax 27 850.00 1,325.00
2. Deferred tax expense 9 495.63 (147.14)
Total tax expenses 1,345.63 1,177.86
Profit after tax 3,777.54 3,430.83
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 12.56 8.60
- lncome.t'ax relatmg_to items that will not be (3.16) (2.17)
reclassified to profit or loss
9.40 6.43
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 9.40 6.43
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,786.94 3,437.26
Earnings per equity share 28
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 0.84 0.89
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 0.84 0.89

{Equity Share of face value of Rs. 10 each)

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1 to 57

In terms of our report attached
For G. D. Apte & Co

Chartered Accountants
FRN-100515W

CA Mayuresh V. Zele
Partner
M. No. 150027

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 April 2023
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 08089220

ushkar Dattatray Joshi
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 April 2023

Vibhor Kumar Talreja
Non-Executive Director
DIN: 08768297 ,
9"

Nidhi Sadani

Company Secretary



IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN; UB5990MH2016PTC271587

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency : indian Rupees Lakhs}

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit befare tax 5,123.17 4,608.69
Adjustments for:
Interest income on financial assets {17,177.68) {13,551.74)
Finance costs 6,523.33 4,933.35
Depreciation.and amortisation expense 321.59 156.55
Impairment on financial instruments {22.62) 612,11
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 37.78 35.03
Share based payment expense 25.09 33.60
Loss on sale of property plant and equipment - 0.05
Impairment allowance on assets held for sale - (117.79)
Net gain on financial instruments at FVPL {283.12} {92.89}
Operating Loss before working capital changes (5,452.44) {3,383.04)
Interest income realised on financial assets 17,063.56 13,146.35
Finance costs paid {6,653.30) {6,290.04)
Cash generated from operating activities before working capital changes 4,957.82 3,473.27
Adjustments:
{Increase)/Decrease in loans and advances {10,211.54) (37,942.53})
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets {1,787.73} 314.04
{Increase)/Decrease in other non-financial assets (263.68) 15.53
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payable 1,188.19 703.80
Increase/{Decrease) in other financial liabilities 651.97 1,419.67
Increase/{Decrease) in other non-financial liabilities (12,21) 32,55
Cash {used in)/generated from operating activities (5,477.18} {31,983.67)
Taxes paid (net} {821.57} {1,360.46)
Net cash (used in}/generated from operating activities (A) (6,298.75) {33,344.13)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {253.12) (52.51)
Purchase of intangible assets (270.31) {179.08)
Sale of property, plant and equipment - 5.68
Sale / {Purchase) of assets held for sale - 595,28
Proceeds/{Investment} in bank deposits of maturity greater than 3 {1,189.61} (1,810.20)
months {net}
{Acqguisition)/Redemption of FVTPL investments (net) (917.30) {1,707.21)
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (B) {2,630.34) (3,148.03)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of equity share capital - 24,901.31
Proceeds from borrowings 42,352.05 62,970.23
Repayments towards borrowings (32,740.39) {51,552.80)
Payment of lease liabilities {64.06) -
Net cash {used in)/generated from financing activities (C) 9,547.60 36,318.74
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {(A) + (B) + {C) 618.51 {173.42)
Cash and Cash Equi s atthet of the period 391.87 565.29
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period 1,010.38 391.87
Reconciliation of cash and cash equi s with the bal sheet
Cash on hand 9.41 4.42
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 483,43 387.45
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 517.54 -
Total 1,010.38 391.87

See-accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1to 57

_Forand on behalf ofithe Board of Directors of
nce Private Limited

In terms of our report attached

For G. D. Apte & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN-100315W,

CA Mayuresh V. Zele
Partner
M. No. 150027

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 April 2023

Chief Executive Officer
DiN: 08089220

Q2
Pushi rDatt‘JtTay.l"ushi
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbat
Date: 27 April 2023

Vibhor Kumar Talreja
Non-Executive Director
DIN: 08768297 "N

Nidhi Sadani
Company Secretary




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Statement of Changes in Equity (SOCIE) for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

{a) Equity share capital of face value of Rs. 10/- each

As at 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting | Changes in Equity Share | Restated balance at the Changes in Equity Share Capital during the Balance at the end
period Capital due to prior beginning of the current current year of the current

period errors

reporting period

reporting period

45,000.00 -

45,000.00

45,000.00

As at 31 March 2022

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting | Changes in Equity Share

Restated balance at the

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the

Balance at the end

period Capital due to prior beginning of the current current year of the current
period errors reporting period reporting period
20,000.00 - 20,000.00 25,000.00 45,000.00
{b) Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Particulars Statutory Reserves ufs . . Capital contribution from Holding Company Total
29¢ Retained earnings

(i) Balance at 1 April 2022 1,537.68 3,118.28 245.51 4,901.47
Profit for the year - 3,777.54 - 3,777.54
Transfer from Retained Earnings 755.51 (755.51) - -
Gain/loss on re-measurement of defined benefit ; 9.40 ; 0.40
plans

Share based payment expense - - 25.09 25.09
Balance at 31 March 2023 2,293.19 6,149.71 270.60 8,713.50
(i) Balance at 1 April 2021 851.51 465.88 211.91 1,529.30
Profit for the year - 3,430.83 - 3,430.83
Transfer from Retained Earnings 686.17 (686.17) - -
Gain/loss on re-measurement of defined benefit } 6.43 ; 6.43
plans

Share issue expenses - (98.69) - (98.69)
Share based payment expense - - 33.60 33.60
Balance at 31 March 2022 1,537.68 3,118.28 245.51 4,901.47

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1 to 57

In terms of our report attached
For G. D, Apte & Co
Chartered Accoungants

ayuresh V., Zele
Partner
M. No. 150027

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27 April 2023
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hrewji
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Place: Mumbai
Date:r 27 April 2023

ar Datfatray Joshi
Chief Financial Officer

Exgeutive Officer
DIN: 08089220
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

doStar %nance Private Limit

Vi
Non-Executive Director
DIN: 08768297 ,

or Kumar Talreja
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Nidhi Sadani
Company Secretary




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

2.2

Corporate Information

IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on January 01, 2016 and is domiciled in india. The Company is
wholly owned subsidiary of IndoStar Capital Finance Limited. The Company is engaged in housing finance business and registered with
National Housing Bank {'NHB'} as housing finance Company (HFC) not accepting public deposits, as defined under section 29A of the
National Housing Bank Act, 1987.

Basis of Preparation and Significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the application of fair value measurements required or allowed by relevant accounting standards. Accounting policies have
been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the management is satisfied that the Company shall be able to
continue its business for the foreseeable future and no material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the going concern
assumption. In making this assessment, the management has considered a wide range of information relating to present and future
conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources. The outbhreak of COVID-19 has not affected the
going concern assumption of the Company.

Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division Il to Schedule
il to the Act applicable for Non Banking Finance Companies (“NBFC”). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as
per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule Il to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial
statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

An analysis regarding recovery or settlement of assets and liabilities of the Company as on balance sheet dates, within 12 months after the
reporting date {current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date {non—current).

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported net when, in
addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event,
the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

- the normal course of business
- the event of default
- the event of insolvency of bankruptcy of the Company/ or its counterparties




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

2.3

a)

Significant Accounting Policies

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial fiabilities can be termed as financial instruments.
Financial instruments are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual terms of the instruments.

(i) Classification of Financial Instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost

2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and the Company’s business model for managing
financial assets.

The Company classifies its financial liabilities at amortised cost unless it has designated liabilities at fair value through the profit and loss
account or is required to measure fiabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) such as derivative liabilities. Financial liabilities,
other than loan commitments and financial guarantees, are measured at FVTPL when they are derivative instruments or the fair value
designation is applied.

Transaction costs directly pertaining to the acquisition or issue of financial instruments are added to or deducted from the initial
measurement amount of the instrument except where the instrument is initially measured as fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Assessment of business model and contractual cash flow characteristics for financial assets

Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial assets to achieve its
business objective. The Company's business mode! determines whether the cash flows will be generated by collecting contractual cash
flows, selling financial assets or by both.

The Company's business model is assessed at portfolio level and not at instrument level, and is based on observable factors such as:

(i} How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated and reported to the
entity's key management personnel;

(ii) The risks that affect the performance of the business model and, in particular, the way those risks are managed;

(iii) The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s assessment. The business model
assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 'stress case’ scenarios into account.

Solely payment of principal and interest (SPPI) test

Subsequent to the assessment to the relevant business model of the financial assets, the Company assesses the contractual terms of
‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change over the life of
the financial asset. The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration for the time
value of money and credit risk.

(i) Initial measurement of financial instruments
The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and the business model for managing
the instruments. Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair value.

(iv) Classification of Financial Instruments as per business model and SPP] test

(a) Loans and Debt instruments at amortised cost

A'loan or debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

ii) The contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP) on
the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in interest income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized
in the profit or loss.




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to sole payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets.

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are those that are either held for trading and have been either designated by
management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109, Management only
designates an instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met (such designation is determined on
an instrument-by-instrument basis):

The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis.
Financial assets at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss.

(d) Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. A compound
financial instrument which contains both a liability and an equity component is separated at the issue date.

(e) Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements (within Provisions) at fair value, being the premium/deemed
premium received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company’s liability under each guarantee is measured at the higher of (i} the
amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and (i) the amount of loss
allowance. The premjum/deemed premium is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the life of the
guarantee.

(f) Undrawn loan commitments
Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment, the Company is required to provide a
loan with pre-specified terms to the customer. Undrawn loan commitments are in the scope of ECL requirements.

(v) Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities
The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional circumstances in
which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line.

(vi) Derecognition of financial assets in the following circumstances

{a) Derecognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the
extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes,
unless the new loan is deemed to be credit-impaired at the origination date.

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result in derecognition. Based
on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded.




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

b)

(b) Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

Financial assets

A financial asset or a part of financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired.
The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:
- The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or
- It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:

- The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

- The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an
unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has retained control of the asset, the
asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises
an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Company has retained.

(vii) Derecognition of Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Write off

The Company writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Company’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Fair Value Measurement

On initial recognition, all the financial instruments are measured at fair value. For subsequent measurement, the Company measures
certain categories of financial instruments at fair value on each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i. Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

ii. Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure

fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as

summarised below:

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectlyﬁ

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data. (K
Hr
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency : indian Rupees Lakhs)

Property plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) is recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the
company and the cost can be measured reliably

Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE) are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the
purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs relating to
acquisition of assets which takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to
the year till such assets are ready to be put to use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of such assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate only if it is probable that the
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and that the cost of the item can be reliably measured. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repair and maintenance are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on Straight Line Method (‘SLM’), which reflects the management’s estimate of the useful life of the respective
assets. The estimated useful life used to provide depreciation are as follows:

. Estimated useful life by Useful life as prescribed
Particulars the Company by Schedule 1l of the
Companies Act 2013
Computers 3 years 3 years
Office Equipment 5 years 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years 10 years
Servers and networks 5 years 6 years

Property, plant and equipment items individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are depreciated fully in the year of purchase.

Leasehold improvement is amortised on Straight Line Method over the lease term, subject to @ maximum of 60 months.

Useful life of assets different from prescribed in Schedule 1l of the Act has been estimated by management and supported by technical
assessment.

Depreciation on assets acquired/sold during the year is recognised on a pro-rata basis to the Statement of Profit and Loss till the date of
sale.

The useful lives and the method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology,
as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.
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d)

e)

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits
that are attributable to it will flow to the Company. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition

Amortisation

Intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over a period of 3 years, which is the management’s estimate of its useful
life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at least as at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of
the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment

(i) Financial Assets

(a) Expected Credit Loss {ECL) principles

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, debt financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with undrawn
loan commitments, in this section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind AS
109.

For the computation of ECL on the financial instruments, the Company categories its financial instruments as mentioned below:

Stage 1: All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that has low credit risk at
the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are classified under this stage. The Company classifies all advances
upto 30 days overdue under this category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been
reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2: All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit impaired are
classified under this stage. Exposures are classified as Stage 2 when the amount is due for more than 30 days but do not exceed 90 days.

Stage 3: All exposures are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred. Exposures where the amount remains due for 90 days or more are considered as to be stage 3

assets.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining
life of the financial instrument. The Company undertakes the classification of exposures within the aforesaid stages at borrower level.

(b) Definition of Default:

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make the contractual payments within 90 days of when they fall due.
Accordingly, the financial assets shall be classified as Stage 3, if on the reporting date, it has been 90 days past due. Non-payment on
another obligation of the same customer is also considered as a stage 3.

(¢) Calculation of ECL:
ECLIis a probability weighted credit {osses (i.e. present value of all cash shortfalis) over the expected life of the financial instruments.

Cash shortfalls are the difference between the cash flows that the entity is entitled to receive on account of contract and the cash flows
that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are as follows:

Exposure-At-Default (EAD) : The Exposure at Default is the amount the Company is entitled to receive as on reporting date including
repayments due for principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities.

Probability of Default (PD) : The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default of the exposure over a given time
horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognisgd-=amd-i

(ALY

still in the portfolio.
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Loss Given Default (LGD) : The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the
realisation of any collateral.

The ECL allowance is applied on the financial instruments depending upon the classification of the financial instruments as per the credit
risk involved. ECL allowance is computed on the below mentioned basis:

12-month ECL: 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represents the ECL that results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. 12-month ECL is applied on stage 1 assets.

Lifetime ECL: Lifetime ECL for credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset in cases of credit impaired loans and in case of
financial instruments where there has been significant increase in credit risk since origination. Lifetime ECL is the expected credit loss
resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. Lifetime ECL is applied on stage 2 and stage 3
assets.

The Company computes the ECL allowance either on individual basis or on collective basis, depending on the nature of the underlying
portfolio of financial instruments,

Significant increase in Credit Risk

The Company monitors all financial assets and financial guarantee contracts that are subject to the impairment requirements to assess
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk the
Company will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date based on the remaining maturity of the instrument with
the risk of a default occurring that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current reporting date when the financial instrument
was first recognised. In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is avaitable without undue cost or effort.

Given that a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is a relative measure, a given change, in absolute terms, in the
Probability of Default will be more significant for a financial instrument with a lower initial PD than compared to a financial instrument
with a higher PD. '

As a back-stop when loan asset not being a loans becomes 30 days past due, the Company considers that a significant increase in credit
risk has occurred and the asset is in stage 2 of the impairment model, i.e. the loss allowance is measured as the lifetime ECL in respect of
all retail assets.

For the purpose of counting of day past due for the assessment of significant increase in credit risk, the special dispensations to any class
of assets in accordance with COVID19 Regulatory Package notified by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has been applied by the company.

Modification and derecognition of financial assets
A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or
otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the
contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future date. In addition, the introduction of a new covenants or adjustment of existing
covenants of an existing loan may constitute a modification even if these new or adjusted covenants do not yet affect the cash flows
immediately but may affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant is or is not met (e.g. a change to the increase in the
interest rate that arises when covenants are breached).

The Company renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximise collection and minimise the risk of default. A loan
forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms,
there is a high risk of default or default has already happened and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The
revised terms in most of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan
(principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due (principal and interest forgiveness) and amendments to
covenants

When a financial ‘asset is modified the Company assesses whether this modification results in derecognition. In accordance with the
Company’s policy a modification results in derecognition when it gives rise to substantially different terms. To determine if the modified
terms are substantially different from the original contractual terms the Company considers the following:
* Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification are no longer SPPI,

* Change in currency or change of counterparty,

* The extent of change in interest rates, maturity, covenants.
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f)

If this do not clearly indicate a substantial modification, then:

(a) In the case where the financial asset is derecognised the loss allowance for ECL is remeasured at the date of derecognition to
determine the net carrying amount of the asset at that date. The difference between this revised carrying amount and the fair value of the
new financial asset with the new terms will lead to a gain or loss on derecognition. The new financial asset will have a loss allowance
measured based on 12-month ECL except in the rare occasions where the new loan is considered to be originated-credit impaired. This
applies only in the case where the fair value of the new loan is recognised at a significant discount to its revised par amount because there
remains a high risk of default which has not been reduced by the modification. The Company monitors credit risk of modified financial
assets by evaluating qualitative and quantitative information, such as if the borrower is in past due status under the new terms.

(b} When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in derecognition, the Company
determines if the financial asset’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing:

* the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the original

contractual terms; with

» the remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms.

For financial assets modified, where modification did not result in derecognition, the estimate of PD reflects the Company’s ability to
collect the modified cash flows taking into account the Company’s previous experience of similar forbearance action, as well as various
behavioural indicators, including the borrower’s payment performance against the modified contractual terms, If the credit risk remains
significantly higher than what was expected at initial recognition the loss allowance will continue to be measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL. The loss allowance on forborne loans will generally only be measured based on 12-month ECL when there is evidence of the
borrower’s improved repayment behaviour following modification leading to a reversal of the previous significant increase in credit risk.

Where a modification does not lead to derecognition the Company calculates the modification gain/loss comparing the gross carrying
amount before and after the modification (excluding the ECL allowance). Then the Company measures ECL for the modified asset, where
the expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the expected cash shortfails from the original
asset.

Presentation of ECL allowance in the Balance Sheet
For financial assets measured at amortised cost, loss allowance for ECL is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the

assets.

(if) Non-financial assets

Intangible assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external
factors. An impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an individual asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value of the asset less cost of its disposal and value in use,

Recognition of income

Revenue generated from the business transactions {other than for those items to which Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments are applicable) is
measured at fair value of the consideration to be received or receivable by the Company. Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with
customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers,

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in Ind 115:
Step 1: ldentify contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation
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g)

h)

(a) Recognition of interest income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EiR) methad for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR
Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR for the amortised cost asset is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, origination fees and
transaction costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk. The adjustment is booked as a
positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income.
The adjustment is subsequently amortised through Interest income in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired
assets. When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3’, the Company recognised the interest
income by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the financial status of the financial asset
improves and it no longer remains to be a credit-impaired, the Company revises the application of interest income on such financial asset
to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Interest income on all trading assets and financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is recognised as interest income in
the statement of profit or loss.

(b) Origination fees
Origination fees, which the Company has received/recovered at time of granting of a loan, is considered as a component for computation
of the effective rate of interest (EIR) for the purpose of computing interest income.

(c) Assignment income

In accordance with Ind AS 109, in case of assignment transactions with complete transfer of risks and rewards, gain arising on such
assignment transactions is recorded upfront in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the corresponding asset is derecognised from the
Balance Sheet immediately upon execution of such transactions. Further the transfer of financial assets qualifies for derecognition in its
entirety, the whole of the interest spread at its present value (discounted over the life of the asset) is recognised on the date of
derecognition itself as excess interest spread and correspondingly recognised as profit on derecognition of financial asset.

(d) Securitisation transactions : .

In accordance with ind AS 109, in case of securitisation transactions, the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

(e) Net gain/(loss) on Fair vaiue changes

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or loss, held by the Company on the
balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain or loss as a gain or expense respectively.

Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL and debt instruments measured at FVOC! is
recognised in net gain / loss on fair value changes.

Finance Costs
The Company recognises interest expense on the borrowings as per EIR methodology which is calculated by considering any ancillary costs

incurred and any premium payable on its maturity.
Retirement and other employee benefits

(i) Defined Contribution Plan

Provident Fund

All the employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, a defined contribution plan in which both the
employee and the Company contribute monthly at a stipulated rate. The Company has no liability for future Provident Fund benefits other
than its annual contribution and recognises such contributions as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.
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i

(ii) Defined Benefit schemes

(a) Gratuity

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan provides for lump sum
payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation from employment after serving for the stipulated year
mentioned under ‘The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972’. The Company accounts for liability of future gratuity benefits based on an external
actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method carried out for assessing liability as at the reporting date.

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the
net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-
measurement of net defined liability or asset through other comprehensive income. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other comprehensive income ('OCY') in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

(b) Compensated Absences

Compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the
related services are provided for based on estimates. Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial
valuation is done as per projected unit credit method as at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to Statement
of profit and loss account and are not deferred.

Share based employee payments

Equity settled share based payments

The stock options granted to employees are measured at the fair value of the options at the grant date. The fair value of the options is
treated as discount and accounted as employee compensation cost over the vesting period on a straight line basis. The amount recognised
as expense in each year is arrived at based on the number of grants expected to vest. If a grant lapses after the vesting period, the
cumulative discount recognised as expense in respect of such grant is transferred to the general reserve within equity.

Such rights have been provided to the employees on the equity shares of the Indostar Capital Finance Limited, who is holding Company.
Such contribution is credited directly as capital contribution of the Company.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement and requires
an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Company as a lessee

Leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items are
treated as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, unless the increase is in line with expected general inflation, in which case lease payments are recognised based
on contractual terms. Contingent rental payable is recognised as an expense in the period in which they it is incurred.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets :The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term
leases (i.e., those leases that have a Iease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

Critical accounting estimate and judgement
1. Determination of lease term

Ind AS 116 Leases requires lessee to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend
or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes assessment on the expected lease term on
lease by lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate

the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements
undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of lease and the importance of the underlying to the Company’
operations taking into account the location of the underlying ass ng:t;lg%?\ilability of the suitable alternatives. The lease term j

periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects t ,e@géﬁ‘t?epo\g'/ Ryic circumstances.
N A

2. Discount Rate L2
The discount rate is generally based on the incremental r
with similar characteristics.
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k)

m)

n)

o)

p)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentational currency

The financial statements are presented in INR which is also functional currency of the Company and the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value
and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Taxes

(i) Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to,
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by
the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or foss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income
or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Earnings Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings per share. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive
potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing
the dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the earnings per share or increases
loss per share are included.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is @ possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Segment reporting
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of financing atf there are no separate reportable segments as g#é
108 dealing with Operating segment.
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2.4

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that the management of the Company makes estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and liabilities and
the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates include useful fives of property, plant and equipment & intangible assets,
allowance for doubtful debts/advances, future obligations in respect of retirement benefit plans, fair value measurement etc. Difference,
if any, between the actual results and estimates is recognised in the period in which the results are known.
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Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Note 3
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Balances with banks
~in current accounts
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months

Note 4
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months

Note 5
Loans
At amortized cost

Term Loans

Total - Gross

Less: Impairment allowance
Total - Net

Secured by tangible assets

Total - Gross
Less: Impairment allowance
Total - Net

Loans in India

(a) Public sector

{b) Others

Total - Gross

Less: Impairment allowance
Total - Net

Loans outside India (b)
Less: Impairment allowance
Total - Net (b)

Total - Net (a)+(b)

Notes :

9.41 4.42
483.43 387.45
517.54 -

1,010.38 391.87
3,260.09 2,070.48
3,260.09 2,070.48

1,33,252.18

1,23,577.53

1,33,252.18 1,23,577.53

(1,246.71) (1,980.35)
1,32,005.47 1,21,597.18
1,33,252,18 1,23,577.53
1,33,252,18 1,23,577.53

(1,246.71) {1,980.35)
1,32,005.47 1,21,597.18

1,33,252.18

1,23,577.53

1,33,252.18 1,23,577.53

(1,246.71) {1,980.35)
1,32,005.47 1,21,597.18
1,32,005.47 1,21,597.18

(i) The Company does not have any financing activities against collateral of gold jewellery. Hence percentage of outstanding loans granted against collateral of gold jewellery to total

assets at 31 March 2023 is NIL (31 March 2022: NIL).

(ii) Detailed analysis on year end stage classification of loans and impairment allowance is disclosed in Note 29.

{iii} The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or other kind of funds) to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries;

The Company has not received any funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Note 6
Investments (at fair value through profit or loss)
Investments in Mutual Fund 3,500.54 2,300.12
3,500.54 2,300.12
Note 7
Other financial assets
Security deposit 68.76 31.03
Assignment receivables 3,568.58 2,410.72
Other receivables - -
Deposits with Trustee for securitisation 592.13 -
4,229.47 2,441.75
Less: ECL on assignment receivable (164.24) {103.39)
4,065.23 2,338.36
Note 8
Current tax assets (net)
Advance tax (net of provision) 230.53 258.96
230.53 258.96
Note 9
Deferred tax assets
Provision for gratuity 15.61 14.23
Provision for leave encashment 4.36 5.43
Provision on assets held for sale - -
Provision for expected credit loss 357.86 488.31
Income amortisation 37.27 44,12
Depreciation on PPE and intangible assets 19.90 22,75
Lease liabilities 6.26 4,57
Deferred tax liabilities
Assignment income amortisation (898.14) (606.74)
Borrowing cost amortisation (122.66) (53.42)
Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) {net) {579.54) (80.75)
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Indostar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 11

Intangible assets ;

Particulars Computer Software Total

Cost as at 1 April 2021 293.32 293.32
Additions 179.08 179.08
Disposals (0.28) (0.28)
Cost as at 31 March 2022 (A) 472.12 472.12
Additions 270.31 270.31
Disposals - -
Cost as at 31 March 2023 (A) 742.43 742.43
Accumulated amortisation as at 1 April 2021 189.33 189.33
Amortisation for the year 75.12 75.12
Disposals (0.28) (0.28)
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2022 (B) 264.17 264.17
Amortisation for the year 161.47 161.47
Disposals - -
Accumulated amortisation as at 31 March 2023 (B) 425.64 425.64
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2023 (A)- (B) 316.79 316.79
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2022 (A)- (B) 207.95 207.95




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Note 12

Other non-financial assets

Prepaid expenses 124.33 67.85

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 349.15 141,95

473.48 209.80

Note 13

Trade payables

Dues to Micro, small and medium enterprises 3.27 0.05

Dues to Others 2,384.62 1,199.65
2,387.89 1,199.70

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years

(i) MSME 3.27 ) - - - 3.27

{ii} Others 2,384.62 - - - 2,384.62

{iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -

{iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -

As at 31 March 2022

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years

(i} MSME 0.05 - - - 0.05

(i) Others 1,199.65 - - - 1,199.65

(iii) Disputed dues ~ MSME - - - - -

(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : indian Rupees Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Note 14

Borrowings

At amortised cost

Term loans

Term loans from banks (Refer note (a) below)
Term loans from NHB (Refer note (b) below)
Other borrowings

Total

Borrowings in India
Borrowings outside India
Total

Secured borrowings
Unsecured borrowings

Total

(a) Term foan from banks (TL):

32,552.58 24,718.61
22,756.77 28,313.20
28,187.21 21,013.39
83,496.56 74,045.20
83,496.56 74,045,20
83,496.56 74,045.20
83,496.56 74,045.20
83,496.56 74,045.20

Asat
As at 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Redeemable within Rate of interest Rate of interest
>=7.90% <= 10.25% >=7.90% <= 8.85%
Amount Amount
Above 60 Months 1,259.79 2,915.71
48-60 Months 3,527.82 2,104.57
36-48 Months 4,376.47 3,173.05
24-36 Months 5,439.39 4,879.46
12-24 Months 9,197.55 6,448.55
0-12 Months 8,751.56 5,197.27
Total 32,552.58 24,718.61
{b) Term loan from NHB (TL):
Asat
As at 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Redeemable within Rate of interest Rate of interest
>=6.60% <= 8.95% >=5.25% <= 6.65%
Amount Amount
Above 60 Months 6,145.00 8,224.86
48-60 Months 1,832.90 3,387.59
36-48 Months 3,388.68 3,590.28
24-36 Months 3,599.19 4,440.98
12-24 Months 4,452.00 4,440.98
0-12 Months 3,335.00 4,228.51
Total 22,756.77 28,313.20

Foot Notes:

(i) Term loan from banks and financial institutions have been used for the purpase for which they were borrowed.

(i) Quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with Banks or Financial Institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Note 15
Other financial liabilities
Book overdraft 1,896.60 1,524.95
Employee benefits payable 306.70 227.28
Unamortised lease liabilities 354.48 282.56
Others 2,443.16 2,222.20
5,000.94 4,257.00
Note 16
Provisions
Provision for employee benefits:
~ Gratuity 62.01 56.52
- Compensated absences 17.34 21.58
Others :
- Expected credit loss on undrawn ioan commitments 10.92 11.76
90.27 89.86
Note 17
Non-financial liabilities
Statutory dues payable 158.54 134,22
158,54 134.22

)
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 18
Equity share capital

. Details of authorised, issued and subscribed share capital

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number Amount Number Amount
Authorised capital
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 1,00,00,00,000 1,00,000.00 1,00,00,00,000 1,00,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 45,00,00,000 45,000.00 45,00,00,000 45,000.00
Total 45,00,00,000 45,000.00 45,00,00,000 45,000.00
. Reconciliation of number of shares at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number Amount Number Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 45,00,00,000 45,000.00 20,00,00,000 20,000.00
Add: Issued during the year (fully paid Rs. 10 each) - - 25,00,00,000 25,000.00
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 45,00,00,000 45,000.00 45,00,00,000 45,000.00
Particulars of shares held by holding Company
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Na f sharehold Relationshi i i
me of share| er elationship No of equity shares Percentage No of equity Percentage
held shares held
Indostar Capital Finance Limited Holding Company 45,00,00,000 100% 45,00,00,000 100%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members, the above shareholding represents legal ownerships of shares.

. Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% of shares held

Name of shareholder

IndoStar Capital Finance Limited*

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Relationship No of equity shares No of equity
P t: Percentage
held ercentage shares held entag
Holding Company 45,00,00,000 100% 45,00,00,000 100%

* 1 equity share each is held by six individuals jointly with IndoStar Capital Finance Limited, further beneficial interest of the same is with IndoStar Capital Finance Limited.

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members, the above shareholding represents legal ownerships of shares.

. Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to proportionate vote on basis of his contribution

g

to fully paid up share capital.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.
The distribution will be in proportion to the proportionate amount of contribution made by the equity shareholder to the total equity share capital.

Objective for managing capital

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains
strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

Promater Name No. of Shares % of Total Shares % Change during the
year

As at 31 March 2023

Indostar Capital Finance Limited 45,00,00,000 100% 0%

As at 31 March 2022

Indostar Capital Finance Limited 45,00,00,000 100% 0%




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
CIN; U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Note 19
Other equity
Statutory reserves u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 2,293.19 1,537.68
Capital contribution from Holding Company 270.60 245,51
Retained earnings 6,149.71 3,118.28

8,713.50 4,901.47
19.1 Other equity movement
Statutory reserves u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987
Opening Balance 1,537.68 851.51
Add : Transferred from surplus 755.51 686,17
Closing Balance 2,293.19 1,537.68
Capital contribution from holding Company
Opening Balance 245,51 211.91
Movement during the year 25.09 33.60
Closing Balance 270.60 245,51
Retained earnings
Opening Balance 3,118.28 465.88
Add: Transferred from the statement of profit and loss 3,777.54 3,430.83
Less: 'Transfer to statutory reserve as per Section 29C of the

X .17

National Housing Bank Act, 1987 (755.51) (686.17)
Less : Share issue expenses - (98.69)
Add: Re-measurement of defined benefit obligations 9.40 6.43
Closing Balance 6,149.71 3,118.28

19.2 Nature and purpose of reserves

Statutory reserves u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

Statutory reserves fund is required to be created by Housing Finance Company as per Section 29C of the National Housing Bank of India Act, 1987. The Company is not allowed to use the

reserve fund except with authorisation of National Housing 8ank.

As per Section 29C of The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 (the “NHB Act”), the Company is required to transfer at least 20% of its net profits every year to a reserve before any dividend
is declared. For this purpose any Special Reserve created by the Company under Section 36(2){viii) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, is considered to be an eligible transfer. Special reserve u/s

29C of the NHB Act includes amount transferred for Special Reserve in terms of Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Capital contribution from holding company

Capital contribution reserve represents the proportionate amount of fair value of options charged to the Company on account of issuance of employee stock options to the employees of
the Company by its Parent Company (i.e. Indostar Capital Finance Limited) on its own shares.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents surplus/(deficit) of accumulated earnings of the Company.
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Note 20

Revenue from operations

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost:
Interest on loans

- Loan portfolio

Interest on deposits

- Deposits with banks

- Investments in PTCs

Fees and commission income
- Fees

Net gain on fair value changes

Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
- Investments

Total fair value changes

Fair value changes:

- Realised

- Unrealised

Total fair value changes

Gain on derecognition of financial instruments measured at amortised cost category
- Assignment Income

Total

Note 21
Other Income

Miscellaneous income
Interest on income tax refund

Note 22
Finance cost
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Interest expense on borrowings

Loans from banks

Other borrowings (including Inter Corporate Deposits)
Interest expense on debt securities

Commercial paper
Other interest expense

Bank charges & other related costs

Note 23
Impairment on financial instruments
Impairment on loans measured at amortised cost
Provision for expected credit loss
Financial assets written off (net of recovery)
Impairment on others
Undrawn loan commitments
Others

17,063.22 13,524.97
103.92 26.77
10.52 -
17,177.66 13,551.74
709.88 592.41
709.88 592.41
283.12 92.89
283.12 92.89
282.65 92.65
0.47 0.24
283.12 92.89
2,659.01 223.96
2,659.01 223.96
20,829.67 14,461.00
65.33 2.78
29.17 18.52
94.50 21.30
4,373.37 2,205.09
1,907.36 2,684.42
178.34 -
64.26 43.84
6,523.33 4,933.35
(733.64) 446.99
651.01 126.14
(0.84) 6.90
60.85 32.08
(22.62) 612.11




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Note 24
Employee Benefits Expenses
Salaries, other allowances and bonus
Gratuity expenses
Compensated absences
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses
Share based payment expense
Employee shared service costs

Note 25
Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Amortisation of intangible assets

Note 26

Other Expenses
Rent
Rates & taxes
Printing and stationery
Travelling & conveyance
Advertisement
Commission & brokerage
Office expenses
Office Expenses IT
Directors' fees & commission
Communication expenses
Payment to auditors (note below)
CSR expenses (note below)
Legal & professional charges
Off roll employee expenses

Loss on sale of property plant and equipment

Other shared service costs

Impairment allowance on assets held for sale

Payment to auditor includes:

a) Statutory Audit (refer footnote)
b) Tax Audit

c) Certifications

d) Other Services

Total

Details for expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility:
a) Gross amount required to be spent during the year

b) Amount of expenditure incurred
c) Shortfall at the end of the year
d) Total of previous years shortfall
e) Reason for short fall

f) Nature of CSR activities
g) Details of related party transactions

3,828.60 2,288.77
30.02 23.47
7.76 11.56
168.81 93.81
108.50 19.35
25.09 33.60
357.05 406.03
4,525.83 2,876.59
160.12 81.43
161.47 75.12
321.59 156.55
77.06 32.77
56.33 90.49
30.67 16.76
264.62 154.99
61.66 7.15
80.12 36.21
307.22 83.80
309.53 108.00
431 0.82
55.96 27.97
12.54 21.22
62.86 19.41
472.60 87.70
839.92 -
- 0.05
1,807.47 725.46
- (117.79)
4,452.87 1,295.01
8.04 12.00
1.50 1.50
3.00 7.72
12.54 21.22
62.86 19.41
62.86 19.41
NA NA
NA NA

Women Empowerment
Healthcare and Sanitation



IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 27
Income taxes

Tax expense
(a) Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current tax expense
Current year 850.00 1,325.00
850.00 1,325.00
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 495.63 (147.14)
495.63 (147.14)
Tax expense for the year 1,345.63 1,177.86

(b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Tax (expense)

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Before tax Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense) benefit Net of tax
benefit

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit liability 12.56 (3.16) .40 8.60 (2.17) 6.43
{asset)

12.56 (3.16) 9.40 8.60 {2.17) 6.43
{c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit before tax 5,123,17 4,608.69
Statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25,17%
Expected income tax expense 1,289.40 1,159.92
Tax effect of:
Others items not deductible 56.00 17.94
Total tax expense 1,345.40 1,177.86
Current tax 850.00 1,325.00
Deferred tax 495.63 (147.14)
1,345.63 1,177.86

NS
T~

o et
HMEC,

2
i




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 28
Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders (after adjusting profit impact of dilutive
potential equity shares, if any) by the aggregate of weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year and the
weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity
shares.

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
i. Profit attributable to equity holders (A)

Profit attributable to equity holders for basic and diluted EPS (Rs. Lakh) 3,777.54 3,430.83
ii. Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Basic EPS (B) 45,00,00,000 38,65,86,301
iii. Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating Diluted EPS (C) 45,00,00,000 38,69,86,301
iv. Basic earnings per share (Rs.) 0.84 0.89

v. Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 0.84 0.89




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 29
Financial instruments ~ Fair values and Risk management

A, Accounting classification and fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market
conditions, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique.

The management has assessed that the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, loans carried at-amortised cost, other financial assets, trade pavyables, borrowings, bank/bock overdrafts and other current

liabilities are a reasonable approximation to their fair value.

B. Risk Management Framework:
Company’s risk management framework is based on

{a} Clear understanding and identification of various risks

{b) Disciplined risk assessment by evaluating the probability and impact of each risk

{c} Measurement and manitoring of risks by establishing key risk indicators with thresholds for all critical risks and
(d) Adequate review mechanism to monitor and control risks.

Company's risk management division works as a value centre by constantly engaging with the business providing reports based on key analysis and insights. The key risks faced by the company are credit risk, liquidity
risk, interest rate risk, operational risk, fraud risk, reputational and regulatory risk, which are broadly classified as credit risk, market risk and operational risk. The company has a well established risk reporting and
monitoring framework. The company identifies and monitors risks periodically, This process enables the company to reassess the all critical risks in a changing environment that need to be focused on.

C. Risk governance structure:

Company’s risk.governance structure operates with a robust Board and Risk Management Committee ('RMC') with a clearly laid down charter and roles and responsibilities. The Board oversees the risk management
process and monitors the risk profile of the company directly as well as through a Board constituted Risk Management Committee. The Committee reviews the risk management policy;, implementation of risk
management framework, monitoring of critical risks, and review of various other initiatives. The risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. The RMC reviews the risk management policies regularly to reflect the changes in market conditions and Company's activities.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of risk nent framework in relation to the risk faced by the
Company,

The risk management division has established a comprehensive risk management framework across the business and provides appropriate reports on risk exposures and analysis in its pursuit of creating awareness
across the Company about risk management.

D. Fair value hierarchy
Ind AS 107, ‘Financial Instrument - Disclosure’ requires classification of the valuation method of financial instruments measured at fair value in the Balance Sheet, using a three level fair-value-hierarchy (which reflects

the significance of inputs used in the measurements). The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities {Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to
un-observable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy under Ind AS 107 are described below:
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and place limited reliance on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3,

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets including their levels in the fair value hierarchy:

As at 31 March 2023

Carrying amount ] Fair value
Fair value
Particulars i Level 1- d
Fair value through other eve Y Qu?te Level 2 - Significant Level 3 - Significant
through profit ) Amortised Cost Total price in active . Total
comprehensive observable inputs unobservable inputs
and loss markets
income
Investments covered under Ind AS 109
{a) Investments 3,500.54 - - 3,500.54 3,500.54 - - 3,500.54
{b) Loans - - 1,32,005.47 1,32,005.47 - - 1,32,005.47 1,32,005.47
Total 3,500.54 - 1,32,005.47 1,35,506.01 3,500.54 - 1,32,005.47 1,35,506.01
As at 31 March 2022
Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value
Particulars i L - ted
Fair value . through other N evel 1, Quote Level 2 - Significant Level 3 - Significant
through profit Amortised Cost Total price in active N Total
comprehensive observable inputs uncbservable inputs
and loss . markets
income

Investments covered under ind AS 108
{a) Investments 2,300.12 - - 2,300,12 2,300.12 - - 2,300,12
{b) Loans - - 1,21,597.18 1,21,597.18 - - 1,21,597.18 1,21,597,18

Total 2,300.12 - 1,21,597.18 1,23,897.30 2,300.12 - 1,21,597.18 1,23,897.30




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

E. Liquidity risk

Liquidity is the Company’s capacity to fund increase in assets and meet both the expected and unexpected obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. Liquidity risk is the inability to meet such obligations as
they become due without adversely affecting the company's financial conditions. The Asset Liability Management Policy of the Company stipulates a broad framework for Liquidity risk management to ensure that the
Company can meet its liquidity obligations. The Asset Liability Management Committee {'ALCO') monitors composition, characteristics and diversification of funding sources to ensure there is no over reliance on single
source of funding. The Company tracks the cash flow mismatches for measuring and managing net funding requirement through Maturity Ladder approach and reviews short-term liquidity profiles based on business
projections and ather commitments for planning purposes through Dynamic Liquidity analysis. The ALCO also reviews the individual mismatch in each time bucket and cumulative mismatch and ensures the bucket wise
limits are not generally breached.

The Company maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that are assumed to be easily liquidated in the event of an unforeseen interruption in cash flow. The liquidity position of the company is
assessed under a variety of scenarios giving due consideration to stress factors relating to both the market in general and risk specifics to the Company. Baslis the liquidity position assessed under various stress
scenarios; the Company reviews the following to effectively handle any liquidity crisis:

* Adequacy of contingency funding plan in terms of depth of various funding sources, time to activate, cost of horrowing, etc

* Availability of unencumbered eligible assets

Maturity profile of undiscounted cash flows for financial liabilites as on balance sheet date have been provided below:

As on 31 March 2023
Parti tessthan3
articulars 3to 12 months 1to 5 years Over 5 years Total
months
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables 2,387.89 2,387.89
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 2,157.69 11,767.10 44,828.80 24,742.97 83,496.56
Other financial liabilities 4,662.68 49.73 224.06 64.47 5,000.94
Total 9,208.26 11,816.83 45,052.86 24,807.44 90,885.39
As on 31 March 2022
Particulars Less than 3 3to 12 months 1to5years Over 5 years Total
months
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables 1,199.70 - - - 1,199.70
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 1,970.78 8,065.29 36,044.36 27,964.77 74,045.20
Other financial liabilities 3,985.70 35.13 213.07 23.10 4,257.00
Total 7,156.18 8,100.42 36,257.43 27,987.87 79,501.90

L,




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CiN: UB5990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 29
Financial instruments ~ Fair values and Risk management (continued)

F. Credit risk

Credit risk arises when a borrower is unable to meet his financial obligations to the lender, The effective management of credit risk requires the establishment of appropriate credit risk policies and processes. The Company
has comprehensive and well defined credit policies across various businesses, products and segments, which encompass credit approval process for all businesses along with guidelines for mitigating the risks associated
with them, The appraisal process includes detajled risk assessment of the borrowers, physical verifications and field visits, The company has a robust post sanction monitoring process to identify credit portfolio trends and
early warning signals. This enables it to implement necessary changes to the credit policy, whenever the need arises to prevent any further slippage in the credit quality.

Significant increase in credit risk

The credit risk on a financial asset of the Company are assumed to have increased significantly since Initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due. Additionally, accounts identified and
reviewed by the Executive committee for labelling as breaching pre-defined critical credit risk parameters will also be classified as Stage 2. Accordingly, the financial assets shall be classified as Stage 2, based on the
quantitative as well as qualitative factors.

Write off policy
Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has stopped pursuing the recovery. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial instrument in statement of

profit and loss,

Restructured financial assets

A loan where repayment terms are renegotiated on substantially different terms as compared to the original contracted terms due to significant credit risk of the borrower are classified as Stage 2. Such loans continue to be
in stage 2 until they exhibit regular payment of renegotiated principal and interest over a minimum observation period typically 12 months-post renegotiation, and there are no other indicators of impairment. Having
satisfied the conditions of timely payment over the ohservation period these loans could be transferred to stage 1 or 2 and a fresh assessment of the risk of default is done,

Overview of the Expected Credit Loss principles
The company records allowance for expected credit losses for all ioans, debt financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with undrawn loan commitments (referred to as ‘financial instrument').

Stage 1: All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are classified
under this stage. The Company classifies all advances upto 30 days overdue under this category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2: All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit impaired are classified under this stage. Exposures are classified as Stage 2 when the amount is due
for more than 30 days but do not exceed 90 days.

'Stage 3: All exposures are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred. Exposures where the amount remains due for
90 days or more are considered asto be stage 3 assets.

The company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at'the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, considering the change
in the risk of defauit occuring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. The company undertaked the classification of exposures within the aforesaid stages at borrower level

Definition of default

A'default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make the contractual payments within 90 days of when they fall due. Accordingly, the financial assets shall be classified as Stage 3, if on the reporting date, it
has been 90 days past due. Further if the customer has raquested forbearance in repayment tarms, such restructured, rescheduled or renegotiated accounts are also classified as Stage 3. Non-payment on another
obligation of the same customer is also considered as a stage 3.

The calculation of ECL

The Company calculates ECL to measure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EiR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive.

The key elements of the ECL are summarised below:

Exposure-At-Default (EAD) : The Exposure at Default is the amount the Company is entitled to receive as on reporting date including repayments due for principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise,
expected drawdowns on committed facilities.

Probability of Default (PD) : The Probability of Default is-an estimate of the likelihood of default of the exposure over a given time horizon, A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility
has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

Loss Given Default {LGD) : The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time, It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the
lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral.

The ECL allowance is applied on the financial instruments depending upon the classification of the financial instruments as per the credit risk involved. ECL allowance is computed on the below mentioned basis:

12-month ECL: 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represents the ECL that results from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. 12-month ECL is
applied on stage 1 assets.

Lifetime ECL: Lifetime ECL for credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset in cases of credit impaired loans and in case of financial instruments where there has been significant increase in credit risk since
origination. Lifetime ECL Is the expected credit loss resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument, Lifetime ECL is applied on stage 2 and stage 3 assets.

The Company computes the ECL allowance either on individual basis or on collactive basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
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Note 29
Financial instruments ~ Fair values and Risk management {continued)

Forward looking information

The company employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and generate estimates of the remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are expected to change as a result of the passage of time. Such
statistical models are sef i idering the availability of information related to the probability of default for each product. This analysis includes the identification and calibration of relationships between changes

in GNPA as proxy for default rates and changes in key macro-economic factors. Key economic indicators considered for forward looking includes:

* GDP growth

« WPI (Wholesale price index)

For the purpose of determination of impact of forward looking information, the.company applies macro economic {ME) variables as stated above to each product and assess the trend of the historical probability of defaults
as compared to the forecasted probability of default. Based on the directional trend of output, management applies an overlay if required, Qvertime, new ME variable may emerge to have a better correlation and may
replace ME being used now.

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company’s internal credit rating system and year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of
impairment allowances.

. 31 March 2023
Particulars
Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Loans 1,28,450.76 3,133.81 1,667.61 1,33,252,18
Total 1,28,450.76 3,133.81 1,667.61 1,33,252,18
Particulars 31 March 2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Loans 1,15,274.30 6,078.92 2,22431 1,23,577.53
Total 1,15,274.30 6,078.92 2,224.31 1,23,577.53
An analysis of changes in the gross carrying and the corresponding ECL all in relation to loans and advances is, as follows:
. 2022-23 : 2021-22
Particulars
Stage 1 Stage.2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount.opening balance 1,15,274.30 6,078.92 2,224.31 1,23,577.53 80,587.29 3,217.54 1,550.91 85,355.74
New assets originated or purchased 47,112.84 133.29 218.43 47,464.56 58,317.15 181.41 289.28 58,787.84
Assets derecognised or repaid (excluding write offs) {35,057.55) {1,179.85) (852.78) {37,090.18) {19,030.38} {591.66} (817.87) {20,439.91)
Transfers to stage 1 2,621.44 (2,489.06) (132.38) . 2,327.03 (2,098.90) (228.13) -
Transfers to stage 2 {1,038.90) 1,049.18 {10,28) {0.00) {6,681,10) 7,822.58 {1,141.48) -
Transfers to stage 3 (461.37) (458.67) 920.04 . (241.85) {2,443.51) 2,685.36 .
Amounts written off - - {699.73) (699.73) {3.84) (8.54) {113.76) (126.14)
Gross carrying amount closing balance 1,28,450.76 3,133.81 1,667.61 1,33,252.18 1,15,274.30 6,078.92 2,224.31 1,23,577.53
Reconciliation of ECL balance is given below:
2022-23 2021-22
Particulars
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance - opening bafance 894.42 265.79 820.14 1,980.35 595.31 587.36 350.69 1,533.36
New assets originated or purchased 235.04 3.47 25.52 264.03 460.63 9.22 74.74 544.59
Assets derecognised or repald (excluding write offs) {281.93) {57.57} {123.25}) {462.75) (134.50) (41.65) {210.96) {387.11}
Transfers to stage 1 86.03 {57.66) (28.37) - 123.56 (68.04) {55.52) -
Transfers to stage 2 {8.02) 10.23 {2.21) - (47.73) 314.01 {266.28) -
Transfers to stage 3 {3.56) (21.76) 25.32 - {1.73} {112.40} 114.13 -
Impact on year end ECL on exposures transferred (288.15) 8.96 27165 (7.54) {101.10) (422.47) 845,60 32203

between stages during the year
Amounts written back {net of recovery) - - {527.39) {527.39) {0.02) {0.24) {32.26) {32.52)
ECL allowance - closing balance 633.83 151.46 461.41 1,246.70 894.42 265.79 820.14 1,980.35
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Note 29
Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

H. Market risk

Market Risk is the possibility of loss arising from changes in the value of a financial instrument as a result of changes in market variables such as interest
rates, exchange rates and other asset prices. The Company’s exposure to market risk is a function of asset liability management and interest rate
sensitivity assessment. The company is exposed to interest rate risk and liquidity risk, if the same is not managed properly. The company continuously
monitors these risks and manages them through appropriate risk limits. The Asset Liability Management Committee {'ALCQ') reviews market related
trends and risks and adopts various strategies related to assets and liabilities, in line with the Company’s risk management framework.

l. Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems, or from external events. The operational
risks of the Company are managed through comprehensive internal control systems and procedures, Failure of managing operational risk might lead to
legal / regulatory implications due to non-compliance and lead to financial loss due to control failures. While it is not practical to eliminate all the
operational risk, the Company has put in place adequate control framework by way of segregation of duties, well defined process, staff training, maker
and checker process, authorisation and clear reporting structure. The effectiveness of control framework is assessed by internal audit on a periodic
basis.

To manage fraud risk effectively, the Company has Independent Risk Containment Unit ('RCU') which is responsibie for implementing fraud risk
management framework and ensure compliance. The RCU undertakes various activities such as pre-sanction loan application verification, pre-sanction
and post disbursement documents verification, vendor verification, etc to prevent and manage frauds.
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Note 29
Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management {continued)

J. Capital Disclosure

The Company maintains adequate capital to cover risks inherent in the business and is meeting the capital adequacy requirements of our
regulator, National Housing Board{NHB). The adequacy of the Company’s capital is monitored using, among other measures, the
regulations issued by NHB.

Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period.

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed
capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise
shareholder value.

The Company maintains its capital structure in line with economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities.

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Tier | capital ratio 80.5% 83.2%
Tier Il capital ratio 0.0% 0.0%
Total capital adequacy ratio ' 80.5% 83.2%
Ratios

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Debt Equity Ratio 157 149

(Debt-equity ratio = (Debt securities + Borrowings

(other than debt securities)) / Networth.)

Total debts to Total assets 0.57 0.57
(Total debts to total assets = {Debt securities+

Borrowings {other than debt securities)) / total

assets.)

Net profit margin 18.1% 23.7%
(Net profit margin= Net profit after tax / total income)




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Related Party disclosures, as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 (Ind AS 24) are given below:

a) Relationships
Ultimate Controlling Party
Brookfield Asset Management Inc. (from 9 July 2020)

Holding Company
BCP V Multiple Holdings Pte. Ltd. (from 9 July 2020)
indoStar Capital Finance Limited

Fellow Subsidiary
IndoStar Asset Advisory Private Limited

Names of other related parties with whom the Company had transactions during the year:
Key Managerial Personnel

Narayanan Nadadur Rajagopalan - Non-Executive Independent Director (tili 13 th January 2023)
Shreejit Menon -Whole Time Director and CEO

Munish Dayal - Non-Executive Non-independent Director

Vibhor Kumar Talreja - Non-Executive Non-Independent Director

Benaifer Palsetia - Non-Executive Non-Independent Director {till 18 th July 2022)

b) Transactions with Key Management Personnel :

Particulars For the year ended 31 For the year ended
March 2023 31 March 2022
1) Short-term employee benefits 164.65 114.28
2) Reimbursement of expenses 1.02 6.59
3) Directors sitting fees 4.31 0.82

Compensation of the Company’s key managerial personnel includes salaries, non-cash benefits and contributions to post-employment
defined benefit plan.

¢} Transactions other than those with key management personnel :

Particulars Holding Company
1) Reimbursement of expenses 2023 2,164.52
2022 1,139.76
2) Interest on loan from holding company 2023 299.52
2022 2,410.16

3) Loan taken/(repaid) from holding company (net) 2023 -
{repayments includes conversion to equity) 2022 (38,000.00)

4} Issue of equity shares 2023 -
2022 25,000.00

d) The related party balances outstanding at year end are as follows:

Key Management

Particul Holdi C
articulars olding Company Personnel
1) Reimbursement of expenses 2023 2,328.93 -
2022 1,196.36 -
2) Loan from holding company 2023 - -

(including accrued interest) 2022 - -
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CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 31
Set out below is the disaggregation of the revenue from contracts with customers

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Type of Services or service

Fees 709.88 592.41
Total revenue from contracts with customers 709.88 592.41
Geographical markets

India 709.88 592.41

Outside India - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 709.88 592.41
Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred at a point in time 709.88 592.41

Services transferred over time - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 709.88 592.41
Note 32
Contingent liabilities and Commitments
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Capital commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account - -
Loans sanctioned not yet disbursed 5,441.36 6,744.05
Note 33
Disclosures as required by Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’
(A) Lease liability movement
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Opening Balance/Transition Adjustment 282.56 113.07
Add : Additions during the year 122.23 196.36
Add : interest on lease liability 30.33 19.32
Less : Lease rental payments (80.64) {46.19)

354.48 282.56

a. Lease rentals of X 67.12 lakhs (Previous year X 19.23 lakhs ) pertaining to short-term leases and low value assets has been charged to

statement of profit and loss.

(B) Future lease cashflow for all leased assets

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Not later than one year 96.86 70.50

Later than one year but not later than five years 285.36 262.66

Later than five years 75.88 23.09
458.10 356.25

(C) Maturity analysis of lease liability

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Lease liability

Less than 12 months 65.95 46.39

More than 12 months 288.53 236.17

354.48
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 34

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

The following disclosure is made as per the requirement under The Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (the ‘MSMED
Act’} on the basis of confirmations sought from suppliers on registration with the specified authorities under MSMED :

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
a. Principal and interest amount remaining unpaid 3.27 0.05
b. Interest due thereon remaining unpaid - -
¢. Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium - -
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the

supplier beyond the appointed day

d. Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been - -
paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding interest specified

under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act,2006)

e. Interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -
f. Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the - -
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises

The aforementioned is based on the responses received by the Company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the
said Act. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
No interest has been paid/is payable by the Company during the year to the suppliers registered under this Act.

Note 35
Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans:

The Company has an funded defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service is eligible for a
gratuity on separation at 15 days basic salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.

Based on Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, the following disclosures have been
made as required by the standard:

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

A. Amount recognised in the balance sheet

Present value of the obligation as at the end of the year 62.01 56.52
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year - -
Net asset / (liability) to be recognized in the balance sheet 62.01 56.52

B. Change in projected benefit obligation

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Projected benefit of obligation at the beginning of the year 56.52 41.65
Current service cost 26.13 20.83
Interest cost 3.89 2.64
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation (12.56) (8.60)
Benefits paid by company (11.97)

Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 62.01 56.52

C. Bifurcation of Projected benefit Obligation

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
16.81 1.22
45.20
62.01

Current Liability
Non Current Liability
Total
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

D. Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial gain/(loss)

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

E. Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Current service cost
Net interest cost
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

F. Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gains) / loss

- change in financial assumption

- change in demographic assumption

- experience variation

Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income

G. Assumptions used
Discount rate

Salary growth rate

Withdrawal rates

H. Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
26.13 20.83
3.89 2.64
30.02 23.47
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
{0.65) (3.47)
(13.52) -
1.61 (5.13)
{12.56) (8.60)
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
7.30% 6.95%
6.00% 6.00%

50% at younger ages
reducing to 10% at
older ages

10% at younger ages
reducing to 6% at older
ages

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would

have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Particulars
Increase Increase Decrease
Discount rate (0.5% movement) 61.10 53.87 59.39
Salary growth rate (0.5% movement) 62.91 59.24 53.81
Withdrawal rate {10% movement) 60.77 56.17 56.85

I. Expected Future Cash Flows

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Year 1 Cashflow
Year 2 Cashfiow
Year 3 Cashflow
Year 4 Cashflow
Year 5 Cashflow
Year 6 to Year 10 Cashflow

J. Other information :
1. The expected contribution for the next year is Rs. NiL

2. The average outstanding term of the obligations as at valuation date lSS:-M‘V?ars.

16.81
23.23
10.27
8.38
7.96
17.05

1.22

4.05
4.33
4.50
4.90
23.76
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Note 36 - Maturity pattern of Assets and Liabilities

Financial statements of the Company are disciosed in the format or order of liquidity. An analysis of its assets and liabilities according to their timing of recoverability and
settlement has been presented below in a tabulated format.

As on 31 March 2023 As on 31 March 2022
Particulars Note Within 12 More than 12 Within 12 More than 12
Total Total
months months manths months
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,010.38 - 1,010.38 391.87 - 391.87
Bank balances other than cash and cash 4 1,858.99 1,401.10 3,260.09 1,798.96 271.52 2,070.48
equivalents
Loans 5 5,577.57 1,26,427.90 1,32,005.47 4,917.03 1,16,680.15 1,21,597.18
Investments 6 3,500.54 - 3,500.54 2,300.12 - 2,300.12
Other financial assets 7 5.73 4,059.50 4,065.23 - 2,338.36 2,338.36
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets {net) 8 - 230.53 230.53 - 258.96 258.96
Property, plant and equipment 10 - 564,73 564.73 - 333.48 333,48
Intangible assets 11 - 316.79 316.79 - 207.95 207.95
Other non-financial assets 12 473.48 - 473.48 209.80 - 209.80
TOTAL ASSETS 12,426.68 1,33,000.56 1,45,427.24 9,617.78 1,20,090.42 1,29,708.20
As on 31 March 2023 As on 31 March 2022
Particulars Note Within 12 More than 12 Within 12 More than 12
Total Total
months months months months
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 13 2,387.89 - 2,387.89 1,199.70 - 1,199.70
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 14 13,924.79 69,571.77 83,496.56 10,036.07 64,009.13 74,045.20
Other financial liabilities 15 4,712.41 288.53 5,000.94 4,020.83 236.17 4,257.00
Non-financial liabilities
Provisions 16 34.10 56.17 90.27 - 89.86 89.86
Deferred Tax Liability 9 579.54 579.54 80.75 80.75
Other non-financial liabilities 17 158.54 - 158.54 134.22 - 134.22
Equity
Equity share capital 18 - 45,000.00 45,000.00 - 20,000.00 20,000.00
Cther equity 19 - 8,713.50 8,713.50 - (1,353.67) (1,354.00)
TOTAL LIABILITIES 21,217.73 70,496.01 91,713.74 15,390.82 64,415.91 79,806.73

Note 37 - Disclosure persuant to Ind AS 108 - 'Operating Segments’
The Company operates mainly in business segment of housing finance. Further, all activities are carried out in India. As such there are no reportable segments as per Ind-AS
108 'Operating Segments’.

Note 38
The disclosure on the following matters required under Schedule [l as amended not being relevant or applicable in case of the Company, same are not covered:

a) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

b} No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.,

c) The Company has.not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.
d) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement.

e} Charges or satisfaction to be registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC) have been registered within the stipulated statutory timelines.

dered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessm

pEIEE

f) There are no transactions which are not recorded in the books of account
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 39 - Disclosure as required by Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company ~ Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

As at 31 March As at 31 March

Particulars
2023 2022
1. Capital
(i) CRAR (%) - 80.5% 83.2%
(ii) CRAR — Tier | Capital (%) 80.5% 83.2%
(iii) CRAR — Tier Il Capital (%) 0.0% 0.0%

(iv}) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier- {l Capital - -
(v} Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments - -

1. Reserve Fund u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987

Balance at the beginning of the year

a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 1,537.68 851.51
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1)(viiijof Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of
Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987

c) Total 1,537.68 851.51

Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the year
Add:

a) Amount transferred u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 755.51 686.17
b) Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1){viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of - -
Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 (refer footnote below)

Less: '

a) Amount appropriated from the Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 - -
b) Amount withdrawn from the Special Reserve u/s 36{1){viii} of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account which - -
has been taken into account for the purpose of provision u/s 29C of the NHB Act, 1987
Balance at the end of the year
a) Statutory Reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 2,293.19 1,537.68
b} Amount of special reserve u/s 36(1){viii)of Income Tax Act, 1961 taken into account for the purposes of - -
Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987 (refer footnote below) )
c) Total 2,293.19 1,537.68

Footnote :As per Section 29C of The National Housing Bank Act, 1987 (the “NHB Act”), the Company is required to transfer at least 20% of its net profits
every year to a reserve before any dividend is declared. For this purpose any Special Reserve created by the Company under Section 36(1)(viii) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961, is considered to be an eligible transfer. Special reserve u/s 29C of the NHB Act includes amount transferred for Special Reserve in
terms of Section 36(1){viii) of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

11l Investments
1. Value of Investments
(i) Gross value of Investments
{a) In India 3,500.07 2,299.88
(b) Outside India . - -
(ii) Provisions for Depreciation/Appreciation*
(a) In India 0.47 0.24
(b) Outside India - -
(iii) Net value of Investments
(a} In India 3,500.54 2,300.12
(b) Qutside India - -
2. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation/appreciation on investments

(i) Opening balance 0.24 0.05
(ii) Add: Provisions made during the year 0.47 0.24
(iii) Less: Write-off / Written-bank of excess provisions during the year (0.24) (0.05)
{iv) Closing balance 0.47 0.24

*Represents Unrealised gain due to Fair value Change

IV. Derivatives
1. Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) / Interest Rate Swap (IRS)

(i) The notional principal of swap agreements
(ii) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfil their obligations under
(iii) Collateral required by the HFC upon entering into swaps
(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps

(v) The fair value of the swap book




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 39 - Disclosure as required by Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company - Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

2. Exchange Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivative

Particulars

As at 31 March As at 31 March
2023 2022

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives undertaken during the year

(ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding as on 31st March 2022
(iii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective"
(iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not “"highly effective”

3. Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

Particulars

As at 31 March As at 31 March
2023 2022

A. Qualitative Disclosure

HFCs shall describe their risk management policies pertaining to derivatives with particular reference to the
extent to which derivatives are used, the associated risks and business purposes served. The discussion shall also
include:

a) the structure and organization for management of risk in derivatives trading,

b) the scope and nature of risk measurement, risk reporting and risk monitoring systems,

¢) policies for hedging and / or mitigating risk and strategies and processes for monitoring the continuing
effectiveness of hedges / mitigants, and

d) accounting policy for recording hedge and non-hedge transactions; recognition of income, premiums and
discounts; valuation of outstanding contracts; provisioning, collateral and credit risk mitigation.

Quantitative Disclosure

As on 31 March 2023 As on 31 March 2022
Particulars Currency Interest Rate Currency Interest Rate
Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives Derivatives

(i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) - -
(i) Marked to Market Positions

(a) Assets (+) - .
(b) Liability (-) - .
(iif) Credit Exposure - -
(iv) Unhedged Exposures - -

V. Securitisation

1. Details of Securitisation pertaining to STC Transactions

Particulars

As at 31 March As at 31 March
2023 2022

1. No of SPVs sponsored by the HFC for securitisation transactions
2. Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored
3. Total amount of exposures retained by the HFC towards the MRR as on the date of balance sheet
(1) Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements
(1) On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements
Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions
4. other than MRR
(1) Off-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements
a) Exposure to own securitizations
b) Exposure to third party securitisations
(1) On-balance sheet exposures towards Credit Enhancements
a) Exposure to own securitisations
b) Exposure to third party securitisations
5. Sale Consideration received for the securitised assets and gain/loss on sale on account of securitisation*
a) Sale Consideration received
b} gain/loss on sale on account of securitisation
6. Form & quantum of Services Provided:
a) Collection Agent Fees

4 2
28,276.96 21,013.39

2,584.99 1,790.00

1,094.69 -

35,439.00 22,370.23




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 39 - Disclosure as required by Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company ~ Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

As at 31 March

Particulars
2023

As at 31 March
2022

7. Performance of facility provided

1) Credit Enhancement
(a) Amount Paid 2,584.99
(b) Repayment Received -
() Outstanding Amount 2,584.99

1) Collection Agent fees -
{a) Amount Paid 8.67
(b) Repayment Received (8.67)
(c) Qutstanding Amount -

8. Amount and number of additional/top up loan given on the same underlying asset -

9. Investor Compaints
{a) Directly/indirectly received -
{b)Complaints Outstanding -

2. Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction

1,790.00

1,750.00

1.30
1.30

As at 31 March

Particulars 2023

As at 31 March
2022

(i) No. of accounts -
{ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/ RC -
(iii) Aggregate consideration -
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years -
(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value -

3. Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by Indostar Home Finance Private Limited

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

Particulars 2023 2022
(i} No. of accounts 2,436 1,041
(ii) Aggregate value {net of provisions) of accounts assigned 18,424.29 6,364.96
(iii) Aggregate consideration 18,424.29 6,364.96
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years - -
(v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value* - -
(vi) Weighted average maturity (No. of Years)** 12.58 12.22
(vi) Weighted average holding period (months) 16.86 19.00
(vii) Retention of beneficial economic interest 10.00% 10.00%

* During the year, the company has booked gain on derecognised {assigned) loans of Rs.2604.62 Lakhs on account of excess interest spread and servicing

assets which does not frm part of aggregate consideration, consequently aggregate gain over net book value is NIL

** Based on scheduled maturity of the pool contracts; may change on account of prepayment and yield change. The weighted average life of the pool after

taking into account prepayments is expected to be much lower

4, Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold

— As at 31 March
articulars 2023

As at 31 March
2022

A. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased:
(a) Number of accounts purchased during the year -
(b) Aggregate outstanding

(a) Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year -
(b} Aggregate outstanding -

B. Details of Non-performing Financial Assets sold:
1. No. of accounts sold -
2. Aggregate outstanding -
3. Aggregate consideration received
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : indian Rupees Lakhs)

VII. Exposure

1. Exposure to Real Estate Sector

Category As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
a) Direct Exposure
(i} Residential Mortgages - Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be
occupied by the borrower or that is rented. Individual housing loans up to 15 lakhs Rs.88,753.16 lakhs. 1,33,245.43 1,23,469.48
(Previous year Rs.84,567.68 lakhs) Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits;

(i) Commercial Real Estate - Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates {office

buildings, retail space, multi-purpose commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-

tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development 6.75 108.05
and construction, etc.). Exposure would also include non-fund based (NFB) limits;

(iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures -
a) Residential - -
b) Commercial Real Estate - -
b) Indirect Exposure Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank {NHB) and

Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)
Total 1,33,252,18 1,23,577.53

2. Exposure to Capital Market
Particulars As at 31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022

{i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity
oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt;

(1) advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for
investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of
equity-oriented mutual funds; - .
(iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or
units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security; - -
(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the
primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity
oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances; . .

(v} secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers
and market makers;

(vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other
securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies in
anticipation of raising resources;

(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows / issues;

viii) Underwriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds

ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading -
x) All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds:

{i) Category |

(i) Category It

(iii) Category 1l R }

Total Exposure to Capital Market

3. Details of financing of parent Company products: None

4. Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the HFC:
The Company has not exceeded the Single Borrower Limit (SBL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) during the financials year/period.

5. Unsecured Advances : None

6. Exposure to group companies engaged in real estate business
Description

Amount % to Net Owned
Funds

(i) Exposure to any single entity in a group engaged in real estate business
(i) Exposure to all entities in a group engaged in real estate business
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs}

VIil. Miscellaneous

1. Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators : None

2, Disclosure of Penalties imposed by NHB and other regulators : Current year - Nil {Previous year - Nil).
3. Related Party Transactions : Refer Note 30

4, Group structure:

Brookfield Asset Management Inc.
{Ultimate Controlling Party)

BCP V Multiple Holdings Pte. Ltd. Indostar Capital
{Promoter & Holding Company) {Promoter)

IndoStar Capital Finance Limited

(Holding Company)

IndoStar Home Finance Private Limitet  IndoStar Asset Advisory Private Limited
{Wholly owned subsidiary) {Wholly owned subsidiary)

5. Rating assigned by Credit Rating Agencies and migration of rating during the year:

Instrument Credit Rating Agency  Asat31March2023  As at 31 March 2022
Commercial Paper CARE Al+ Al+
ICRA Al+ Al+
CRISIL Al+ Al+
Term Loans/NCD's CRISIL AA- AA-

India Ratings and Research Private Limited

5. Remuneration of Directors (non executive) : Refer Note 30(b)

IX. Additional Disclosures
1. Provisions and Contingencies

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head Expenditure in Statement of Profit

and Loss As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

1. Provisions for depreciation on Investment -

2. Provision made towards Income tax 850.00 1,325.00

3. Provision towards NPA (358.73) 469.45

4, Provision for Standard Assets (including provision on Teaser Loan Rs. NIL, CRE-RH for Rs. NIL & CRE

for Rs.NIL (Previous Year Teaser Loan Rs. NIL, CRE-RH for Rs. NIL & CRE for Rs. NIL) (374.91) (22:48)

S. Other Provision and Contingencies ' 60.01 38.98

Housing Non-Housing

Break up of Loan & Advances and Provisions thereon Asat31March  As at 31 March As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
. 2023 2022

Standard Assets

a) Total Qutstanding Amount 1,07,643.70 99,112.69 23,940.87 22,240.53

b) Provisions made 639.70 932,58 145.59 227.63

Sub-Standard Assets

a) Total Outstanding Amount 731.02 1,017.92 270.41 285.71

b) Provisions made 130.02 222,34 55.65 61.12

Doubtful Assets — Category-

a) Total Qutstanding Amount 433,43 351.07 122.90 143.79

b) Provisions made 127.45 79.46 38,45 31.40

Doubtful Assets — Category-Il

a) Total Qutstanding Amount 74.10 326.01 12,62 57.89

b) Provisions made 74.10 326.01 12.62 57.89

Doubtful Assets — Category-iii

a) Total Qutstanding Amount 22.84 38.59 0.29 0.30

b) Provisions made 22.84 38.59 0.29 0.30

Loss Assets

a) Total Qutstanding Amount - - - 3.03

b) Provisions made - - - 3.03

TOTAL

a) Total OQutstanding Amount 1,08,905.09 1,00,846.28 24,347.09 22,731.25

b) Provisions made 994.11 1,598.98 252.60 381.37




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

2. Draw Down from Reserves : None

3. Concentration of Public Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

3a. Concentration of Public Deposits (for Public Deposit taking/holding HFCs)
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits of the HFC

3b. Concentration of Loans & Advances

Total Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers 1,436.72 1,662.38
Percentage of Loans & Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances of the HFC 1.08% 1.35%
3c. Concentration of all Exposure (including off-balance sheet exposure)
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 1,539.62 1,822.84
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure of the HFC on 1.11% 1.40%
borrowers / customers
3d. Concentration of NPAs
Total Exposure to top ten NPA accounts 452.70 453,74
3e. Sector-wise NPAs
Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in that sector
A. Housing Loans:
1. Individuals 1.16% 1.72%
2. Builders/Project Loans - -
3. Corporates - -
4. Others - -
B. Non-Housing Loans:
1. Individuals 1.67% 2.16%
2. Builders/Project Loans - -
3. Corporates - -
4. Others - -
4, Movement of NPAs

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
{I) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.91% 1.14%
{11) Movement of NPAs {Gross}
a) Opening balance 2,224.31 1,550.91
b) Additions during the year 1,138.47 2,974.64
c} Reductions during the year (1,695.17) (2,301.24)
d) Closing balance 1,667.61 2,224.31
{1t} Movement of Net NPAs
a} Opening balance 1,404.17 1,200.22
b) Additions during the year 815.98 1,940.17
c} Reductions during the year (1,013.95) {1,736.22)
d) Closing balance 1,206.20 1,404.17
{IV) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
a) Opening balance 820.14 350.69
b) Provisions made during the year 322.49 1,034.47
) Write-off/write-back of excess provisions {681.22) {565.02)

461.41 820.14

d) Closing balance

5. Overseas Assets : None

6. Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored {which are required to be consolidated as per accounting Norms) : None




DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RESERVE BANK OF INDIA CIRCULAR NO, RBI/2022-23/26 DOR.ACC.REC.N0.20/21.04.018/2022-23
X. Customers Complaints

1) Summary Information on complaints recelved by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman

“ticulars As at 31 March 2023  As at.31 March 2022

Complaints received by the NBFC from its customers

1 Number of complaints pending at beginning of the year 3 13
2 Number of complaints received during the year 209 156
3 Number of complaints disposed during the year 212 166
3.1 Of which, number of complaints rejected by the NBFC 0 0
4 Number of complaints pending at the end of the year 0 3

Maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from Office of Ombudsman

5 Number of maintainable complaints received by the NBFC from

Office of Ombudsman 0 0
51 Number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office
" of Ombudsman 0 0

Number of complaints resolved through
5.2 conciliation/mediation/advisories issued by Office of

Ombudsman 0 0
52 Number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by
" Office of Ombudsman against the NBFC 0 0
6 . . . .
* Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time 0 0

Note: Maintainable complaints referto complaints on the grounds specifically mentioned in Integrated
Ombudsman Scheme, 2021 (Previously The Ombudsman Scheme for Non-Banking Financial Companies, 2018) and
covered within the ambit of the Scheme. * It shall only be applicable to NBFCS which are included under The
Reserve Bank - integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021

2) Top five grounds* of complaints recelved by the NBFCs from customer

Number of % increase/ decrease  |Number of

complaints pending |Number of in the number of complaints Of 5, number of

atthe beginning of |[complaints recelved |complaintsrecelved |pendingat the complaints pending
Grounds of complaints, {i.e. compl relating to) the year during the year over the previous year {end of the year__|beyond 30 days

1 2 3 4 5 6
For the year ended 31st March 2023
Ground -1 3 51 24% 0 0
Ground -2 0 122 171% 0 0
Ground -3 0 6 12% 4 Y
Ground -4 o 0% o] 4]
Ground -5 0 0 0% 0 o
Others 0 33 -71% 0 0
Totals 3 212 0 0
For the year ended 31st March 2022

Ground-1 10 41 -45% 3 Y
Ground -2 1 52 247% 0 0
Ground - 3 0 1 0% 0 0
Ground -4 0 0 0% 0 0
Ground - 5 0 0 0% [ 0
Others 2 62 11% [] 0
Totals 13 156 3 0

* The list of grounds of complaints given below are indicative only.
1. Loans & Advances

2. Operational issues

3. Staff Behaviour

4., Others

Breach of Covenant- There were no instances of breach of convenant of loan availed or debt securities issued for FY 22-23
Divergence In Asset Classification and Provisioning
There are no instances where additional provisioning requirements are assessed by RBI (or National Housing Bank{NHB) exceeding 5 percent of the

the reported profits before tax and impairment loss on financial instruments for the reference period

Also there are no instances where additional Gross NPAs identified by RBI/NHB exceeds 5 per cent of the reported Gross NPAs for the reference period
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IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 40 - Disclosure as required by Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

Particulars

As at 31 March 2023

Liabilities side :

(1) Loans and advances availed by the HFC
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:

Amount outstanding Amount overdue

(a) Debenture : Secured
: Unsecured
{b) Deferred Credits
(c) Term Loans
(d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing
{e) Commercial Paper
(f) Public Deposits {Refer Note 1 below}
(g) Other Loans

55,309.35 -

28,187.21 -

(2) Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding
public deposits inclusive of interest accrued
thereon but not paid):

Amount outstanding Amount overdue

(a) In the form of Unsecured debentures

(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures
where there is a shortfall in the value of security
(c) Other public deposits

Assets side :

(3) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables
(other than those included in (4) below ):

Amount outstanding

(a) Secured
(b) Unsecured

1,33,252.18

{4) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire
counting towards AFC activities

Amount outstanding

(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :
(a) Financial lease
(b} Operating lease

(ii) Stock on Hire inciuding hire charges under sundry debtors :
(a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed Assets

{iii) Other loans counting towards AFC Activities :
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b) Loans other than (a) above

(5) Break-up of Investments :

Amount outstanding

Current Investments :
1. Quoted:
(1) Shares : (a) Equity

{b) Preference
{ii) Debenture and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (Please specify)

2. Unquoted :
(1) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii} Units of mutual funds

3,500.54




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 40 - Disclosure as required by Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company ~ Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

Break-up of Investments : Amount outstanding
(iv) Government Securities ’ -
(v) Others (Please specify) -

Long Term investments :

1. Quoted:

(1) Shares : (a} Equity -
(b) Preference -

(i) Debentures and Bonds -

(iii) Units of mutual funds -

(iv) Government Securities ‘ -

(v) Others (Please specify) -

Amount outstanding

2. Unquoted :

(1) Shares: (a) Equity -
(b} Preference -

(i) Debentures and Bonds -

(iii} Units of mutual funds -

(iv) Government Securities -

{v) Others: Pass through certificates -

(6) Borrower group-wise classification of assets, financed as in (3) and (4) above :

Category Amount ( Net of provisions )
Secured Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties **
(a) Subsidiaries - - -
(b) Companies in the same group - - -
( c) Other related parties - - -
2. Other than related parties 1,33,252.18 - 1,33,252.18

(7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term)
in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):

Book Value
Market Value / Break

Category up or fair value or
NAV* (Net of Provisions)
1. Related Parties **
(a) Subsidiaries - -
{b) Companies in the same group - -
( c) Other related parties - -
2. Other than related parties 3,500.54 3,500.54
(8) Other information
Particulars Amount

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties** -
{b) Other than related parties 1,667.61
(i) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties** -
{b) Other than related parties 1,206.20
(iii} Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt -




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 40 - Disclosure as required by Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

(9) Principal business criteria:
The Company is in compliance with the requirement of Principal Business Criteria in terms of Para 4.1.17 of Master Direction -
Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021

Particulars % Limit
Criteria-l

Financial Assets / Total Assets (net of Intangible Assets) 96.26% > 50%
Income from Financial Assets / Gross Income 99.05% > 50%
Criteria-ll

Housing Finance / Total Assets {net of Intangible Assets) 75.22% 2 60%
Housing Finance for Individual / Total Assets (net of Intangible 75.22% 2 50%
Assets)

Footnote: Cash/Bank Balance and Investments in fixed deposits is not classified as "financial assets” and Interest income on fixed
deposits is not classified as "income from financial assets" in terms of Master Direction.

(10)  Disclosure on liquidity risk management framework:
(i) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty {both deposits and borrowing)

Particulars As at 31 March 2023
Number of significant counter parties 12
Amount 55,309.35
Percentage of funding concentration to total deposits NA
Percentage of funding concentration to total liabiities excluding networth 60.31%
(i) Top 20 large deposits

Particulars As at 31 March 2023
Total amount of top 20 deposits NA
Percentage of amount of top 20 deposits to total deposits NA

(i} Top 10 borrowings

Particulars As at 31 March 2023

Total Amount 55,309.35

% of Total Borrowings 100%
{iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 %age of total liability

{excluding Networth)

Term loans from banks 32,552.58 35.49%

Term loans from NHB 22,756.77 24.81%
(v) Stock ratio

Particulars As at 31 March 2023

Commercial paper as a percentage of total public funds NA

Commiercial paper as a percentage of total liabilities NA

Commercial paper as a percentage of total assets NA

Non convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one

year) as a percentage of total public funds NA

Non convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one

year) as a percentage of total liabilities NA

Non convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one

year) as a percentage of total assets NA

Other short term liabilities as a percentage of total public funds 13.19%

Other short term liabilities as a percentage of total liabilities 7.95%

Other short term liabilities as a percentage of total assets 5.01%
(vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk Management Refer Note 29

Footnote: Borrowing and Public Funds excludes associated liabilities in respect of securitised asset that has not
been derecognised due to non fulfiliment of derecognition criteria as per IndAS.

(11)  Percentage of outstanding loans against collateral of gold jewellery Nil

(12)  Fraud reported during the year - Nil (previous year Nil)




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited
CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 41 - DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RESERVE BANK OF INDIA CIRCULAR NO. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.

NO.109/22.10.106/2019-20:

Asset Classification as per RBI Norms Asset classification  Gross Carrying Loss Allowances  Net Carrying Provisions Difference
asperInd AS109 Amount as perind  (Provisions) as Amount required as per between Ind AS
AS required under IRACP norms 109 provisions
Ind AS 109 and IRACP
norms
(1) (2) (3) (4) (s}=(3)-(4) (6) (7)=(4) - (6)
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 1,28,450.76 633.83 1,27,816.93 354.14 279.69
Stage 2 3,133.81 151.46 2,982.35 113.19 38.27
Subtotal 1,31,584.57 785.29 1,30,799.28 467.33 317.96
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 1,001.43 185.66 815.77 153.92 31.74
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 556.33 165.90 390.43 136.03 29.87
1to 3years Stage 3 86.72 86.72 - 30.70 56.02
More than 3 years Stage 3 23.13 23.13 - 20.63 2.50
Subtotal for doubtful 666.18 275.75 390.43 187.36 88.39
Loss Stage 3 - - - - -
Subtotal for NPA 1,667.61 461.41 1,206.20 341.28 120.13
Total 1,33,252.18 1,246.70 1,32,005.48 808.61 438.09
Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage 1 - 10.92 {10.92) - 10.92
commitments, etc, which are in the scope of Stage 2 - - - - -
Ind AS 109 but not covered under current Stage 3 - - - - -
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and
Subtotal - 10,92 {10.92) - 10.92
Stage 1 1,28,450.76 644.75 1,27,806.01 354,14 290.61
Total Stage 2 3,133.81 151.46 2,982.35 113.19 38.27
Stage 3 1,667.61 461.41 1,206.20 341.28 120.13
Total 1,33,252.18 1,257.62 1,31,994.56 808.61 449,01

Note 42 - The Company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Note 43 - Companies {Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules, 2023 have been issued on March 31, 2023. However, said rules are effective from April
01, 2023 and accordingly shall be applicable to the Company from financial year 2023-24.

Note 44 - Figures for the previous years have been regrouped and / or reclassified wherever considered necessary to conform to current year presentation.

Note 45 - No penalties have been imposed by NHB/RBI and other regulators during the current and previous year.

Note 46 - The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

Note 47- Relationship with struck off companies on the basis of available data on the date of reporting

Relation ship
with the struck
off-company, if

Nature of As per 31 March As per 31 March [any ,to be
Name of Struck off Company transactions 2023 2022 disclosed
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil




IndoStar Home Finance Private Limited

CIN: U65990MH2016PTC271587

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency : Indian Rupees Lakhs)

Note 48 - Standards issued but not yet effective
On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) through a notification, amended Schedule 11l of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments
revise Division I, Il and Il of Schedule 11l and are applicable from April 1, 2021. The Company has evaluated the same for reporting.

Note 49 - Segment information
The Company is engage primarily in business of financing and accordingly there are no reportable segment as per Ind AS-108 on ‘Operating Segments’
notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 (as amended). The Company operates in a single geographical segment i.e. domestic,

Note 50 - Event after reporting date
Subsequent events are tracked and evaluated by the Company. There are no material subsequent events requiring adjustments / disclosures in the financial

statements.

Note 51-Disclosure Pursuant to Regulation 54 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations,2015

All secured Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) issued (in April 23) by the Company- are fully secured by first pari passu charge created over the freehold
immovable properties, current assets, cash flows and receivables of the Company. Accordingly, the Company is maintaining asset cover of 1.25x or such
higher asset cover required as per the terms of offer document/information Memorandum.

Note 52-The Company has not accepted deposits, within the meaning of ‘Public Deposits’ as defined in the prudential norms issued by the Reserve Bank of
India. Details of expenditure in foreign currency for the year ended March 31, 2023 Nil (March 31, 2022 - Nil)

Note 53-Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

Charge registration with ROC for NCD issued in April 2023

Note 54-Compliance with number of layers of companies

The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of
Layers) Rules, 2017 and Section 186 of Companies act, 2013

Note 55- Details of Benami Property held
There are no proceedings which have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

Note 56- Undisclosed income
The Company will not have any transaction which not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Note 57- Details of the loan taken from Banks and other parties
All Secured long term borrowings are secured by way of hypothecation of receivables i.e. loans & advances.
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